
 

Minutes of the Calaveras Resource Conservation District (RCD) 
Board Meeting 
May 7, 2020 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 
891 Mountain Ranch Road, San Andreas, CA 

 
Call to Order:  The virtual meeting was held via GoToMeeting and called to order by S. Beckman-
President @ 6:05 pm 
 
Board Members & Staff Present: S. Beckman-President; R. Dean-Secty/Treas; M. Robie; F. Schabram; 
B. Dubois-Assoc. Dir.; G. Long-Executive Director; Dana Simpson-Staff Accountant; Mary Cole-Admin  
Board Members & Staff Absent: K. Hafley; N. Valente-VP; 
Others Present: Jill Micheau; Bobette Parsons (NRCS); Catherine Talbot; Amanda Watson (Amador 
RCD);  
Public Comment: None. 
Partners:  Bobette Parsons reviewed her report in the Board Packet. 
Consent Agenda Items: 
1. Approval of 3/5/20 Minutes. Board Action – F. Schabram made motion to approve, M. Robie 

second. On a 5-0-2 vote, minutes were approved. 
2.   Approval of March/April 2020 Finance Reports – B. Dean made motion to approve, F. Schabram 

second. On a 5-0-2 vote, reports were approved. 
Old Business: 
1. Mill Woods Final Update –S. Beckman reported he attended a meeting to review submitted notes by 

Mill Woods board. He also visited with some of the homeowners. G. Long added that he worked 
with Jill Micheau on the final grant report of 125 pages, sent with a refund check for $9,829.46. 

2. Carbon Hub/Carbon Farming partnership – Amanda Watson reported she has not heard much from 
the lead group - Carbon Cycle Institute but that ACT has met several times on planning. Waiting for 
input on future grant opportunities. 

3. RCPP Updates – approached by CARCD to re-apply for funding of $156,000 and requires 45 plans. 

4. Facilities Committee Update – M. Robie reported that incase they wanted to sell the building, a real 
estate agent valued it at $325,000. They suggested there may be a future discussion of the options 
about how to proceed. It was suggested that the committee bring  a proposal for discussion at a future 
board meeting, perhaps June 4. It further was suggested they check with the County Assessor to see 
if the buildings could be split. 

New Business: 
1. Board Approval of Resolution 2020_03 – CalFire Fuels Reduction Grant – B. Dean made a motion 

to approve signing Resolution 2020-03. Second by F. Schabram. Approved 4-1(no) -2 vote. 

2, Board approval of grant management team - F. Schabram made a motion to approve the 
proposed team – Gordon Long, Project Manager; Dana Simpson, Finance; Jill Micheau, Grant 
Manager. Not officially part of the team, but also working on it will be Mary Cole, HR 
preparation.  Second by B. Dean. Approved 4-1(abstain) -2 vote. 



 

3. Declaration Letter – Discussion about the letter we received from the County Clerk Recorder 
requesting a resolution about how we want to handle filling future position vacancies. 

4. Approval of Letter - A resolution is to be submitted before July 1, 2020 to the County Clerk 
Recorder to establish that we want the Board or Supervisors to appoint all future RCD board 
members until further notice. F. Schabram made a motion to approve sending a Resolution to the 
County Clerk Recorder. Second by Brady Dubois. Approved 5-0-2 vote. 

5. Approve Gordon Long – B. Dean made a motion to approve Gordon Long to move ahead on a 
new PG&E grant. Second by Brady Dubois. Approved 5-0-2 vote. 

 

Board Member announcements – No Reports. 

Staff announcements – G. Long, E.D. expressed his excitement for the new CalFire grant we received. 

REMINDER:  Form 700s are due from all board members. 

Adjournment of meeting. Meeting adjourned @ 7:00 pm. 

 
 
Next meeting scheduled for Thursday, June 4, 2020 via GoToMeeting.com. 
 
Attest: 
President, Sid Beckman  _______________________     Date  _____________ ______ 

 
Secretary, Bob Dean __________________________    Date           



 
 

Calaveras County Resource Conservation District 
 

PUBLIC CONTRACT BIDDING, VENDOR AND PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT 
SELECTION, AND PURCHASING POLICY 

December 5, 2019 
 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the District obtains quality services, supplies, material and 
labor at the lowest possible cost, and to provide a uniform method for procurement of services and 
supplies. In addition, through proper documentation, conformance to this Policy will enable the District's 
constituents to know that their public funds are being spent responsibly, and potential vendors and 
contractors to know that they are being treated equitably. 
 
I. PURCHASING AUTHORITY 

 
There are three levels of authority for purchases: Board Approval, Executive Director Approval and 
Delegated Approval.  The maximum purchasing authority amounts refer to the total price of an 
order, including tax and/or shipping, which may include more than one item and also includes 
change orders and contract amendments.  As used in this Policy, the term “purchasing” refers 
collectively to contracting or procurement of services, supplies, material or labor. 

 
A. Board Approval for Purchases In Excess of $500 

 
If the cost for furnishing services, supplies, materials, labor, or other valuable consideration to the 
District will exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500), approval from the Board of Directors is required 
prior to entering into the contract. 

 
Contracts which have been approved by the Board shall be signed by the Board President, or in the 
Board President’s absence, his or her designee, the board can direct the Secretary to sign on behalf 
of the District.  

 
B.  District Manager Approval for Purchases Not Exceeding $500 

 
The Executive Director may obtain bids without advertisement or published notice inviting bids and 
may authorize and execute contracts for payment for services, supplies, material, labor, or other 
valuable consideration for any purpose, including the new construction of any building, structure, 
or improvement, in an amount not exceeding $500. 

 
II. SOLICITATION OF BIDS 

 
A.   Solicitation of Formal Advertised Bids for Expenditures Exceeding $10,000 

 
When any expenditure is expected to exceed $10,000, the District shall invite bids a minimum of 
one week prior to the time of receiving bids.  Distribution may include digital distribution networks, 
a general circulation newspaper, or other means deemed appropriate. This type of formal bidding 
process typically includes the issuance of written plans or specifications describing the goods or 
services to be provided and the receipt of written bids from the vendors involved. Solicitation of 



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

formal bids from a minimum of three vendors is required.  As described in Section III.D below, 
selection of vendors may be based on a variety of criteria and may include but is not limited to the 
lowest cost bidder. 

 
 

B.  Expenditures Not Exceeding $10,000 
 

The District may invite bids for expenditures not expected to exceed $10,000 at the discretion of the 
Executive Director or at the Request of the Board of Directors.  The Executive Director shall obtain 
competitive cost information and consider qualifications of contractors providing services, 
whenever reasonably feasible, for any District purchase even though formal bids are not required 
for goods or services costing $10,000 or less. 

 
III.  EXCEPTIONS TO STANDARD PURCHASING PROCEDURES  

A.   Emergency Conditions 

An emergency is defined as a the inability of the District to provide services, or a threat to public 
health, safety, or welfare, including, but not limited to, threatened damage to natural resources.  In 
the case of an emergency requiring an immediate purchase, the Board President may authorize his 
or her designee to secure in the open market any services, supplies, material or labor required to 
respond to the emergency, regardless of the amount of the expenditure. The Secretary shall, as soon 
as possible, provide a full written explanation of the circumstances to the Board for inclusion at a 
publicly noticed meeting. 

 
In the case of a disaster or for civil defense, nothing contained in this Policy shall limit the authority 
of the Board President to make purchases and take such other emergency steps as are, or may be, 
authorized by the Board. 

 
B. Limited Availability/Sole Source 

 
Occasionally, necessary supplies, material, equipment, or services are of a unique type, are of a 
proprietary nature, or are otherwise of such a required and specific design or construction, or are 
specifically necessary for purposes of maintaining cost effective system consistency, so as to be 
available from only one source.  After reasonable efforts to find alternative suppliers, the District 
may dispense with the requirement of competitive bids and recommend negotiating and making the 
purchase from the sole source.  The basis for the sole source recommendation shall be documented 
in writing and approved, in advance, by the Board for purchases exceeding $10,000. 

 
C.  Cooperative Purchasing 

 
The District shall have the authority to join in cooperative purchasing agreements with other public 
agencies to purchase goods or services at a price established by that agency through a competitive 
bidding process.  The Secretary may authorize and execute such cooperative purchasing agreements. 

 
The formal competitive bidding procedures of Section II.A. for purchases exceeding $10,000 are 
not required when the other public agency has secured a price through a formal, advertised 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

competitive bidding process.  Board approval is required prior to purchase. 
 

D.  Professional Services 
 

Professional consultant services are of a technical and professional nature, and, due to the nature of 
the services to be provided, do not readily fall within the “low bid” competitive bidding process. In 
addition, State law requires that selection of professional consultants in the categories of architects, 
landscape architects, engineers, surveyors, construction managers, and environmental consulting be 
made on the basis of demonstrated competence and the professional qualifications necessary for the 
satisfactory performance of the required services.  Professional consultants should be individually 
selected for a specific project or problem with the objective of selecting the most qualified consultant 
at a price that is fair and reasonable.  Professional services agreements shall not be split into smaller 
units, nor shall contract amendments be used, for the purpose of circumvention of this Policy. 

 
1. Selection Procedures for Professional Services in Excess of $10,000 

 
When the cost for professional services is expected to be in excess of $10,000, the District shall 
prepare a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) outlining the professional’s qualifications, relevant 
experience, staffing and support and hourly rates as a basis for negotiating a contract or a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) outlining the terms, conditions and specifications of the services 
required by the District.  A minimum of three (3) qualified firms or individuals shall be invited 
to submit proposals. 

 
District staff and/or District directors and/or partners selected by District staff will review the 
proposals received, will select the most qualified firms for interviews, and will rank the 
consultants based upon appropriate criteria developed for the project or required services.  These 
criteria will be included in the RFQ or RFP. 

 
 

2.   Renewal of Contracts with Professional Consultants 
 

The District may, at its sole discretion, and after following required consultant selection 
procedures, enter into consultant agreements which contain provisions authorizing their 
extension or renewal. However, recommendations to extend or renew an existing contract with 
a professional consultant should include an annual evaluation of the work performed by the 
consultant as well as a determination that the fees being charged are comparable to similar 
services offered by other consultants at the time of renewal or extension. If the total amount of 
the original and renewed contract in any one fiscal year does not exceed $10,000, the Board 
President may execute the agreement.  If the total amount exceeds $10,000, the request must be 
approved by the Board. 

 
3.   Conflict of Law 

 
These procedures are not applicable where superseded by local, state or federal law, where the 
terms of grant funding provide for the use of other consultant selection procedures, or where 
the District is obligated to select consultants through the use of different procedures, such as 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

due to the requirements of an insurance or self-insurance program. 
 

4.   Special Circumstances 
 

These procedures are not applicable when three (3) qualified firms or individuals are 
unavailable, or if it is appropriate and in the best interest of the District under the specific 
circumstances of the project at issue, to limit the number of consultants solicited.  The basis for 
such action shall be documented in writing and approved by the Board President.  When Board 
approval is required, the documented basis for such action shall be included in the report to the 
Board and publicly noticed at the next meeting of the Board. 

 
 

E.  Open Purchase Orders for Routine and Repetitive Supplies and Services 
 

Open purchase orders may be entered into with vendors who are expected to supply routine services, 
supplies, materials or labor to the District on a regular basis throughout the fiscal year.  Open 
purchase orders shall be closed at the conclusion of each fiscal year. Vendors of repetitive supplies 
and services shall be selected through the competitive bidding procedures set out in Section II, based 
upon the anticipated or budgeted cumulative cost of the supply or service. Multi-year contracts can 
be let only when appropriate and necessary to secure the best pricing, best service, or assure 
continuity of service.  An annual review of the services and prices provided shall be documented by 
District staff to assure that the vendor is meeting the District’s needs and expectations and remains 
at a competitive price. Whenever feasible, multi-year contracts for service or supplies shall provide 
that the option to renew or extend the contract is at the District’s sole discretion. 

 
IV   CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

No District employee or official shall be financially interested, directly or indirectly, in any 
purchase, contract, sale, or transaction to which the District is a party and which comes before said 
official or employee for recommendation or action. Any purchase, contract, sale, or transaction in 
which any employee or official is or becomes financially interested shall become void at the election 
of the District. No employee or official shall realize any personal gain from any purchase, contract, 
sale, or transaction involving the District. 
 
 
 
 
 

Date_______________________ 
 
 
 
 

Sid Beckman, President 
 Calaveras County Resource Conservation District 


	Minutes of the Calaveras RCD 05.07.20_draft
	Procurement Policy_CCRCD 2019

